




MERCEDES CITY COMMISSION 

REGULAR MEETING 

OCTOBER 16, 2023 – 6:30 P.M. 

MERCEDES CITY HALL – COMMISSION CHAMBERS 

MEMBERS PRESENT: Oscar D. Montoya Sr. Mayor 

Dr. Ruben Saldana Mayor Pro-Tem 

Armando Garcia Commissioner 

Joe Martinez  Commissioner  

Dr. Jacob Howell Commissioner 

STAFF PRESENT: Alberto Perez  City Manager 

Martie Garcia-Vela City Attorney 

Javier Ramirez Asst. City Manager 

Nereida R. Perez Finance Director 

David Jimenez  I.T Manager

Marisol Vidales Library Director

OTHERS PRESENT: Ruth Valdez 

1. CALL MEETING TO ORDER

Mayor Montoya welcomed everyone and called the meeting to order at 6:30 P.M.

2. ESTABLISH QUORUM

All members of the Commission were present which constitutes a full quorum.

3. INVOCATION

Commissioner Howell said the invocation.

4. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

Mayor Pro-Tem Saldana led in the pledge of allegiance.

5. PRESENTATIONS:

a. Proclamation in memory of Master Sergeant Juan Moya Sr.

Postponed to the next meeting.

6. OPEN FORUM:

No one signed up.

Commissioner Garcia motioned to go into executive session. Commissioner Howell 6:32 PM 

7. EXECUTIVE SESSION:

a. Discussion with City Manager regarding personnel matters – Section 551.074

b. Consultation with Attorney regarding update on litigation – Section 551.071

c. Consultation with Attorney regarding contract for services – Section 551.071

8. OPEN SESSION: Mayor Montoya called the meeting back to order at 8:01 P.M.

a. Item A from Executive Session

No action

1

Item 7A



b. Item B from Executive Session

No action

c. Item C from Executive Session

Commissioner Martinez motion to approve the renewal for administrator of

record. Commissioner Howell seconded. Upon a called vote, the motion passed

unanimously. Commissioner Martinez motioned to renew the Education Resource

officers Agreement with Mercedes ISD. Commissioner Howell seconded. Upon a

called vote, the motion passed unanimously.

Commissioner Martinez motioned to move to Item 11A. Commissioner Howell seconded. Upon 

a called vote, the motion passed unanimously. At this time, the Commission moved to item 11A. 

9. CONSENT AGENDA:

a. Approval of Minutes for Meeting(s) held September 19, 2023.

Commissioner Martinez motioned to approve item 9A. Commissioner Garcia

seconded. Upon a called vote, the motion passed unanimously.

10. MANAGEMENT ITEMS:

a. Public Hearing: Fiscal Year 37 (2024) Needs Assessment for the County of

Hidalgo Urban County Program

Mayor Montoya opened the public hearing at 8:04 P.M.

Mr. Rolando with Area Agency on Aging stated they have a waitlist of 4 months

to 10 months as opposed to 1 year in previous years. They offer homemaking

services, health maintenance and residential repairs. At a question from Mayor

Pro-Tem Saldana, Mr. Rolando stated that the residents must be 62 and above,

resident of Mercedes, and low income. CDBG funding has limitations and

requirement residents need to meet. This will assist residents of Mercedes inside

and outside city limits.

Mayor Closed the public hearing at 8:09 P.M.

b. Approval to renew member terms to the Mercedes Historic Preservation

Commission.

Ms. Vidales stated 3 members terms expire in October. Pedro Ayala, Architect,

Tracy White, Broker, and Lorri Merchant. Commissioner Martinez motioned to

renew. Commissioner Garcia seconded. At a question, Ms. Vidales stated there

are a total of 7 members and 2 alternates. They are currently missing 2 members

and 1 alternate. Upon a called vote, the motion assed unanimously.

c. Approval of appointment/reappointment of member to the Keep Mercedes

Beautiful Committee.

Commissioner Martinez motioned to appoint Mr. Cruz Lopez. Mayor Pro-Tem

Saldana seconded. Upon a called vote, the motion passed unanimously.

11. BIDS/CONTRACTS:

a. Authorizing the City Manager and City Attorney to proceed with selecting

and contracting an Agent of Record based on the Health Insurance

proposals.

2



Commissioner Martinez motioned to approve Ortegon Agency as Agent of 

Record. Mayor Pro-Tem Saldana seconded. Commissioner Garcia abstained from 

the Vote. Upon a called vote, the motion passed. Four voted for and one 

Abstained. 

At this time, the Commission proceeded with the order of the agenda and moved 

to item 9A.  

12. MONTHLY REPORTS

Monthly reports were provided for the Commission to review. No action required.

13. ADJOURNMENT

Commissioner Martinez motioned to adjourn. Commissioner Garcia seconded. Upon a

called vote, the motion passed unanimously. The meeting adjourned at 8:12 P.M.

3



MERCEDES CITY COMMISSION 

SPECIAL MEETING 

OCTOBER 30, 2023 – 6:30 P.M. 

MERCEDES CITY HALL – COMMISSION CHAMBERS 

MEMBERS PRESENT: Dr. Ruben Saldana Mayor Pro-Tem 

Armando Garcia Commissioner 

Joe Martinez  Commissioner 

Dr. Jacob Howell Commissioner 

MEMBERS ABSENT: Oscar D. Montoya Sr. Mayor 

STAFF PRESENT: Martie Garcia-Vela City Attorney (Virtual) 

Joselynn Castillo City Secretary 

Javier Ramirez Asst. City Manager  

David Jimenez  I.T Manager

1. CALL MEETING TO ORDER

Mayor Pro-Tem Saldana welcomed everyone and called the meeting to order at 6:33 P.M.

2. ESTABLISH QUORUM

Three members of the Commission were present which constitutes a quorum. Commissioner

Martinez arrived after the pledge of allegiance. Mayor Montoya was absent.

3. INVOCATION

Commissioner Howell said the invocation.

4. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

Commissioner Garica led in the pledge of allegiance.

5. OPEN FORUM:

No one signed up.

6. CONSENT AGENDA:

a. Approval of Minutes for Meeting(s) held September 26, 2023

Commissioner Garcia motioned to approve item 6A. Commissioner Martinez seconded.

Upon a called vote, the motion passed unanimously.

7. ORDINANCES/RESOLUTIONS:

a. Approval of Resolution 2023-18 for the Temporary Closure of State Right-of-Way

Commissioner Martinez motioned to approve. Commissioner Garcia seconded. Upon a

called vote, the motion passed unanimously.

b. Approval of Resolution 2023-19 authorizing local funds match for GLO 2019 Floods

Commissioner Howell motioned to approve. Commissioner Martinez seconded. Upon a

called vote, the motion passed unanimously.

8. MANAGEMENT ITEMS:

a. Approval of agreement for the Temporary Closure of State Right-of-Way

Commissioner Martinez motioned to approve. Commissioner Garcia seconded. Upon a

called vote, the motion passed unanimously.

9. ADJOURNMENT

4



Commissioner Martinez motioned to adjourn. Commissioner Garcia seconded. Upon a 

called vote, the motion passed unanimously. The meeting adjourned at 6:38 P.M.  

5



FUND: BUDGET AMENDMENT#

DEPARTMENT: DATE POSTED:

Fund G/L ACCT# DESCRIPTION
Approved

Budget (Decrease) Add
Amended

Budget

01 532-1010 Full-Time Employees 58,210.00        (34,659.00)    23,551.00           
01 532-1100 Pension Contribution 13,488.00        (5,864.00)      7,624.00              
01 532-1120 Social Security 6,091.00          (2,656.00)      3,435.00              
01 530-4010 Capital Outlay 50,000.00        43,179.00     93,179.00           

- 
- 
- 
- 
- 
- 

Justification/Explanation for change:
To cover repairs at the restrooms

Dept Head Requesting change Finance Dept

Approved:
City Manager Mayor

CITY OF MERCEDES 
BUDGET AMENDMENT

01

Vehicle Maint

6

Item 7B



7

Item 7C



8

2023-20



9

2023-21



RESOLUTION NO. __________ 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF MERCEDES TO ADOPT A RESOLUTION 

ENSURING MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC ARE PROVIDED THE 

OPPORTUNITY TO SPEAK ON MERCEDES CITY COMMISSION AGENDA IN 

ORDER TO HEAR PUBLIC INPUT REGARDING AGENDA ITEMS BY 

SETTING INSTRUCTIONS AND RULES OF PROCEDURE AND IN ORDER TO 

COMPLY WITH TEXAS GOVERNMENT CODE SECTION 551.007. 

WHEREAS, The City of Mercedes Code of Ordinances, provides the detailed procedures and 

order of business for the City of Mercedes City Commission meetings; and 

WHEREAS, the current Ordinance provides the audience an opportunity to address the 

Commission during Public Hearings; and 

WHEREAS, the City Commission believes that it is important to ensure they hear from members 

of the public on the topics the Commission has on the agenda; and 

WHEREAS, Texas Government Code Section 551.007 requires that members of the public have 

the right to address the City Commission at an open meeting; and 

WHEREAS, Texas Government Code 551.007 (c) allows a governmental body to adopt 

reasonable rules regarding the public's right to address the body under this section, including rules 

that limit the total amount of time that a member of the public may address the body on a given 

item. 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT THE CITY COMMISSION OF THE CITY 

OF MERCEDES, TEXAS WILL DO THE FOLLOWING: 

Set forth rules regarding the public’s right to address the body in open forum. 

PROCEDURE & RULES: 

1. In order to address the City Commission during the Open Forum portion of the agenda,

you must first complete the form and give it to the City Secretary 10 minutes prior to the

start of the meeting. Topics to be discussed must be limited to items on the agenda.

Forms will not be accepted after 10 minutes prior to the start of the meeting. (Form is

available in city council chambers prior to scheduled city council meetings.)

2. Please remember to step to the podium when you are recognized by the Mayor and state

your name and address before beginning your presentation. If speaking on behalf of an

organization or other group, identify the group represented.

3. All presentations by citizens are limited to no more than three (3) minutes.

4. In order to ensure that meetings are conducted in an efficient manner. Maximum length

of time of forum is 30 minutes with individual presentations limited to a maximum of

two minutes. Presentations will be made in the order completed participation forms are

received.

10

2023-22



5. If you have written remarks or printed material you wish to present to the City

Commission, please furnish them to the City Secretary.

6. Speakers should address all remarks to the City Commission as a whole, not to individual

members.

7. All persons who complete a Citizen Open Forum Participation Form, whether or not

allowed to speak, may submit written comments or exhibits to the City Secretary.

8. No shouting or cursing is allowed at City Commission meetings. Purposefully disrupting

a public meeting is a violation of state law and may result in the offending party being

made to leave the meeting and can lead to criminal charges.

9. Employee exception to OPEN FORUM: All comments regarding an employee are strictly

prohibited. Any complaints regarding an employee would need to be addressed to the

City Manager’s Office during normal business hours.

PASSED AND APPROVED BY THE CITY COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF 

MERCEDES, TEXAS ON THIS 7TH DAY OF NOVEMBER, 2023. 

11



12

Item 9D



13



14



15

10A



16



17



18



19



20



21



22



23



24



25



26



27



28



29



30

10B



31



32



33



34



35



36



37



38



39



40



41



42



43



44



45



46



47



48



49



50



51



52



53



54



55



56



57



58



59



60



61



62



63



64



65



66



67



68



69



70



71



72



73



74



75



76



77



78



79



80



81



82



83



84



85



86



87



88



89



90



91



92



93



94



95



96



97



98



99



100



101



102



103



104



105



106



107



108



109



110



111



112



113



114



115



116



117



118



119



120


	11-7-23 Agenda
	Item 7A1 - 10-16-23
	Item 7A2 - 10-30-23
	Item 7B - Building Maintenance
	BUDGET AMENDMENT

	Item 7C - planning
	Item 9A - Christmas
	Item 9B - Marathon Resolution
	Item 9C - Open Forum Resolution
	Item 9D - HCAD BOD
	Item 10A - Christmas Parade 2023 - Approval of Agreement for the Temporary Closure of State Right-of-Way
	Item 10B - Agreement for Marathon



